ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE

HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE

April 7, 2009
8:05 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representati ve Craig Johnson
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representati ve
Representati ve

Max Gruenberg
Pet e Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 8

Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
limting appropriations from certain mneral revenue, relating
to the bal anced budget account, and relating to an appropriation
[imt.

- MOVED HIR 8 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 24

Uging the United States Congress and the United States
Department of Agriculture to extend the basic housing allowance
exclusion to all mlitary famlies for purposes of the school
nutrition program

- MOVED HIR 24 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 24

"An Act relating to a public procurenent preference for Al aska
veterans."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 128
"An Act relating to introduction of neasures and to fiscal notes
for nmeasures.”
HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2009



- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 8

Proposi ng anendnents to the Uniform Rules of the Alaska State
Legislature relating to wthdrawing neasures, to sponsors of
measures, to prefiling neasures, and to the three readings of
bills.

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HHIR 8

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM APPROP. LI M T/ M NERAL REVENUE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

01/ 26/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 09 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

04/ 02/ 09 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 02/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 02/ 09 (H) M NUTE( STA)

04/ 07/ 09 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HIR 24

SHORT TITLE: FED. SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM M LI TARY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

03/ 13/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 13/ 09 (H) MV, STA

03/ 31/ 09 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 31/ 09 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

03/ 31/ 09 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

04/ 01/ 09 (H) M.V RPT 4DP

04/ 01/ 09 (H) DP: RAMRAS, LYNN, BUCH, GATTO
04/ 07/ 09 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 24

SHORT TI TLE: PROCUREMENT PREFERENCE FOR VETERANS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) FAI RCLOUGH, GATTO, LYNN

01/ 20/ 09 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 09

01/ 20/ 09 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 20/ 09 (H M.V, STA

03/ 31/ 09 (H M.V AT 1:00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 31/ 09 (H Moved CSHB 24(M.V) Qut of Commttee
03/ 31/ 09 (H M NUTE( M_V)

04/ 01/ 09 (H) M.V RPT CS(M.V) 2DP 2NR

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2009



04/ 01/ 09 (H DP: LYNN, GATTO
04/ 01/ 09 (H NR: RAMRAS, BUCH
04/ 07/ 09 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prine sponsor, provided comments during
t he hearing on HIR 8.

DEREK M LLER, Staff

Representative M ke Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded answers to questions on behal f of
Representative Kelly, prime sponsor of HIR 8.

JOHN BOUCHER, Seni or Econom st

Ofice of the Director

O fice of Managenent & Budget (QOVB)

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HIR 8.

DANA STROWMEN, St af f

Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TION  STATEMENT: Introduced HIR 24 on behalf of
Representati ve Ranras, prine sponsor.

CRYSTAL KCENEMAN, St aff

Representati ve Anna Faircl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 24 on behalf of Representative
Fai rcl ough, co-prine sponsor.

VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent Oficer

Di vision of Ceneral Services

Depart ment of Adm nistration

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
24.

Rl CHARD DAVI DGE, Menber

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2009



Board of Directors

Al aska Vet erans Busi ness Alli ance;

Pr esi dent

St ate Counci |

Vi et nam Vet erans of America

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 24.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:05:15 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representatives Seaton, Gatto,
Johnson, W I son, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to
order. Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HIR 8- CONST. AM APPROP. LI M T/ M NERAL REVENUE

8:05:34 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 8, Proposing anendnents to the Constitution
of the State of Alaska |limting appropriations from certain
m neral revenue, relating to the balanced budget account, and
relating to an appropriation limt.

8:06:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor of HIJR 8, noted that questions had been asked by the
conmmttee at the previous hearing of HIR 8, and the answers to
t hose questions had been prepared and would be provided by his
staff, Derek Ml er.

8:07:23 AM

DEREK M LLER, Staff, Representative Mke Kelly, Alaska State
Legi slature, noted the first question that had been asked was in
regard to the source of the definition of “mneral revenue” - a
term used on page 1, lines 8-10, of HIR 8. The answer is
Article 9, Section 15, of the Constitution of the State of
Al aska, which read:

At least twenty-five percent of all mneral |[ease
rentals, royalties, royalty sale proceeds, federal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2009



m neral revenue sharing paynents and bonuses received
by the State shall be placed in a permanent fund, the
principal of which shall be wused only for those
i ncome- producing investnments specifically designated
by law as eligible for permanent fund investnents.
Al incone from the permanent fund shall be deposited
in the general fund unless otherw se provided by | aw

MR MLLER also defined mneral production and mnera
transportation - two other terns used in the proposed resol ution
- as the state’s production tax on oil and the state’'s tariff on
transporting oil via the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS),
respectively.

MR MLLER said question tw had to do with the remaining
i ndebt edness to the Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund (CBRF),

and the anmount is $150 million “and change.” He said [in fisca

year 2008 (FY 08)] the legislature appropriated $3 billion from
the General Fund (GF) to the CBRF. Addi tionally, over $2
billion were transferred from a variety of G- sub-funds and
accounts to the CBRF.

8:09: 55 AM

MR. MLLER addressed question three, which was to discern
whet her or not the state could include fish receipts and tourism
in the proposed 5-year appropriation limt. M. Mller said the
answer is yes; however, the state receives mninmal revenue from
these sources conpared to mneral revenue. For exanple, he
noted, if the $22 mllion total wunrestricted income from fish
tax in FY 07 and FY 08 was added to the HIR 8 nodel, those
receipts would represent a little less than half a percent of
the total revenue for those years. He noted also that there are
other fish receipts, but since they are restricted, they should
not be included in the HIR 8 nodel. In response to Chair Lynn

he indicated that restricted receipts are |ike designated funds.

8:11: 02 AM

MR MLLER, in response to Representative Gatto, said the
unrestricted incone fromtourism which could be included in the
HIR 8 nodel, includes: $9 nmillion from the Car Rental Tax,
[$12.3] from the Cruise Corporate Incone Tax, $3.5 nmillion from
the Tourism Corporate Income Tax, and $6.7 nillion from the
Crui se Gam ng Tax.

8:12: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2009



MR. M LLER noved on to the fourth question, which asked whether
it would be feasible to calculate a 3-year average, deleting the

high and | ow extrenes. The answer to that question is yes, he
said, and the nunbers are illustrated on a l|line graph |abeled,
“State of Al aska General Fund Spending FY 00 - FY 10,” which is
attached to the aforenentioned handout. M. MIller explained

that the blue line depicts the actual G- spending, the red line
shows the five-year average discussed at the |ast hearing of HIR
8, and the green |line depicts the three-year average. The green
and red lines track together until FY 09 and FY 10, when the
green line is | ess by several hundred mllion dollars.

8:13: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON interpreted that no matter which plan was
used - the five-year average proposed by HIR 8 shown as the red
line, or the three-year average conparison, shown as the green
line - the anmpbunt of noney available from GF spending would be
| ess than the anount shown through FY 10 for actual GF spending
- the black line.

MR. DEREK answered that’'s correct.
8:14: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO poi nted out a second |ine graph attached to
the handout, [which is entitled, “5-year and 3-year Average
Conpari son”]. He observed that because the values for the
hori zontal and vertical scales of each line graph are not
conpatible, it is difficult to make a conparison between the two
gr aphs. For exanple, one chart shows FY 00 - FY 10, while the
ot her shows FY 04 - FY 17. The first and second graphs have
different coordinates, which nmakes it difficult to conpare the
t wo.

MR. M LLER explained that those two |ine graphs are not neant to
be conpared, since the one shows G- spending, while the other
shows how nmuch the state received in mneral revenue.

8:15:52 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLY comrented, “That was in response, | think,
to Representative WIson's question about projecting it out, and

of course what we used was the state estimates for ... the
el enents.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2009



8:16: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she was conparing this to [slide] 10
of the presentation the other day [included in the conmittee
packet]; however, she observed that the colors of the lines are
not consistent.

8:17:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that the day before, comittee
menbers had received information from Representative G uenberg
relating that the anmount the state owes the CBRF is $650
million, while M. MIller today told the conmmttee that anount
is $150 mllion. He said he wants to know what the state
actually owes and what the source was for the information from
both parti es.

MR. MLLER said the information that the anount of i ndebtedness
was $150 million was obtained from Rob Carpenter in Legislative
Fi nance. He said the nunber is from FY 08.

8:19: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON drew attention to [a nenorandum in the
conmttee packet from Pat Davidson, Legi sl ative Auditor,
Legi slative Budget and Audit Commttee, Division of Legislative
Audit], which shows that the bal ance owed at the end of FY 08 is
[ $150, 093, 111], while the estimated anobunt currently owed the
CBRF in 2009 is [$620,578,218]. He said, then, that neither
this source nor M. Mller’s contradict one another, because
both list the anmount owed in FY 08 as approximately $150
mllion.

8:19: 57 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked Representative Kelly which conparison - the
five-year or the three-year - he thinks would be best for the
state.

8:20:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY answered that both conparisons are simlar.
He indicated that if there had not been a spike in the revenue,
as seen on the line graph, he wuld stay wth his 5-year
averagi ng pl an. However, because there was a spike in revenue,
the three-year average conparison “wpes that effect out and
snoothes it so the net effect would be ... less spending as the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2009



price plumeted.” The effect would be “even nore budgetary
di sci plines being inposed,” he added. Representative Kelly said
he would |eave the decision to the conmttee. He said no one
antici pated the spike in revenue when HIR 8 was formnul at ed.

CHAIR LYNN stated that if [the spike in revenue] doesn’t happen
for another 20 years, “that’s one thing,” but if it happens
every three or four years, “it’s quite another.”

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY concurr ed.
8:23:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she can understand why the sponsor
chose to show the first graph with vertical scale increnments of
a billion dollars, because she opined doing so illustrates “nore
of a difference ... just at a glance.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that the difference between the
first and second graphs is apparent in the years FY 08, 09, and
10. He interpreted that with the three-year average, there
woul d never have been “a penny out of this fund since 2000 that
woul d ever have cone back for supporting the General Fund

budget .” He pointed out that the difference between the
averages and actual GF spending in FY 05, as shown on the first
line graph, is approximately $600 mllion. He said that

represents 26 percent of the total G- in the operating budget in
2005, and represents 100 percent of the capital budget .
Representative Seaton surnmised that the intent is that in future
years the state would create a [Bal anced Budget Account (BBA)]
fund with its mneral revenue that exceeds the three- or five-
year average. However, that revenue would be unavailable in the
BBA, and would only be available if the legislature were to
“violate the statute” or access the CBRF via the required three-
quarter vote.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, referring to the first graph, surmsed
that if the proposed constitutional anendnent had been in play
over the |ast decade, then “the only thing that we could do is
take a CBR vote to fund every one of these years and nake up the
difference between the green or the red line and what we
actual ly woul d have spent.”

8:29:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he believes what the resolution
intends is forced savings to prepare for a bleak [revenue]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2009



future. He said Representative Seaton is right that [if the
averagi ng had been done over the past decade] the state would
have had less to spend; however, the state would have had nore
noney saved. He said the question is, “Wich one of those
scenarios is the preferable scenario.”

8:30: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said the short answer to Representative
Seaton is yes. In response to Representative Gatto, he said the
purpose of HIR 8 is to place constraints on the legislature. He
said he has never nmet an Al askan who would say the state should
not have a fiscal plan. The debate is what the fiscal plan
shoul d | ook |ike, and many agree that the plan wll be conprised
of many el enents. One of the elenents put in place |ast year
he related, was a bill that passed [requiring departnents to
devel op a 10-year forecast]. He indicated that the people of
the state have attenpted in the past to place limts on [state
spendi ng]; however, “the efforts to this point have caused quite
a few problens.” He opined that HIR 8 is “an averagi ng nethod”
that “avoids the problens,” is flexible, and takes into account
both the past and the future.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY drew attention to a page attached to the
af orenmenti oned handout, on which is a nodel of HIR 8. He said
the [BBA ending balance] shown for the years [FY 04 - FY 17]
illustrates “that it would show off in sone years considerable

dol lars.” He said Representative Seaton’s point is that those
are dollars that the legislature would have sone difficulty
“getting their hands on.” Representative Kelly confirned,
“That’s exactly what this does.” He spoke of the benefit of
having a discipline wherein the state saves revenue earned
during “good tinmes.” He said he would like to ask the people of
Alaska if they support that idea. He pointed out that the

constraints proposed by the resolution would be predictable and
woul d help the admnistration and the |egislature to know nore
easily what funds will be avail abl e.

8: 35: 04 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that the managers of the
Al aska Permanent Fund recently swtched to a five-year averaging
plan to avoid giving out too nuch in any single year.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY stated, “W didn’t begin this exercise when

prices were plumeting, we began it when prices seened to be
rising.” He added, “It perfornms as we woul d expect.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 7, 2009



8:35:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON renmarked that in many regions across the
state, the capital budget is the engine that drives the econony,
and she questioned [how HIR 8 would affect] those communities.
She said she agrees with Representative Kelly' s prem se, but
warned that the State of Alaska nust be careful to avoid
devastating parts of the state which may not be able to *“handle
it” as well as other parts of the state.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY responded that HIR 8 is formulated to avoid
severe plumeting [of the state’s revenue incone], thus it would
sustain a predictable capital budget.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said it can take six years to pull out of
a sharp drop in revenue, but she doubts the state would ever be
wi thout a capital budget for six years, because of the bal ance
in the CBRF. She said the legislature is not going to take
anything out [of the CBRF|] unless it absolutely has to do so.
She related that in sone years the capital budget has been high,

in others it has been low, and in still others it could have
been kept lower than it was.. She predicted that under the HIR
8 scenario, part of the state may fare well, while the other

part may find its econony torn apart, and she encouraged the
| egislature to look for solutions that would benefit the entire
st at e.

8:41: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY reiterated that HIR 8 is designed to
provide a capital budget in years when it would otherw se be

enpty.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON countered that the resolution would take
away the capital budget “during the other years.”

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY responded that HIR 8 woul d not make or | ose
nmoney for the state, but would signal the need to stop spending
as rmuch.

8:43: 06 AM
REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG directed attention to a pie chart in
the coommttee packet, |abeled, “State of Al aska Expenditures by

Category FY 05 Operating & Capital Budgets ($ mllions),” which
shows varying types of expenditures. He said he would focus on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- April 7, 2009



those types of expenditure “as neasured against the nmatrix of
time,” as well as in terns of whether or not they are legally or
practically required expenditures. One category, he said, are
expenditures that nust occur because they are legally required.
They include expenditures such as federal “pass-throughs,”
entitlement prograns, education, keeping streets safe, and
econom ¢ stinmulus funds. The second category, he highlighted

relates to those expenditures that nust be spent practically,
but do not have to be spent immedi ately, such as for deferred
mai nt enance. The third category, he said, are those
expenditures that are discretionary funds, such as celebrating
Al aska Day.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that Al aska cannot dedi cate funds,
but its legislature has nuch nore discretion than |egislatures
in other states. He pointed to the pie chart, which shows that
30.6 percent of it is nmoney from the General Fund. He said HIR
8 affects the matrix of time by delaying expenditures which do
not fall under the legally required category. He said those who

want an Al aska Day celebration “will still have the political
pressure to do it.” Conversely, he stated, issues such as
children being crowded into schools and bridges that wll not

get repaired until they collapse, which do not have the kind of
| obby to push them through, wll just get delayed. He stated

“I think you have to neasure your concept against the concepts
of time and requirenments.” He asked Representative Kelly to
specifically address that issue.

8:47:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said he has a different view He said the
state cannot print noney and nust discipline itself. He stated
that a fiscal plan prevents over spending and sets aside noney
in case of decreased incone. He reiterated that he would I|ike
to offer this plan to the public.

CHAIR LYNN comented that this [fiscal plan] could be done
wi t hout anmending the constitution, but the |egislature probably
woul d not adhere to it.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY concurr ed.

8:50: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN tal ked about the difficulty the state

has had in projecting revenue. He said |ast year’s projections
were well over $1 nmillion off the mark, and that discrepancy

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2009



will have to be corrected with a supplenental budget. He stated
that he thinks it is difficult to |lock the state into a spending
pl an when it does not know what its revenue will be.

CHAIR LYNN said projecting revenue will be difficult whether or
not [HIR 8 is adopted].

8:52:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY stated that he agrees with Representative
Petersen, and he said he believes that is a strong argunent for
this nodel, because this nodel projects only one year.

8:54: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated that HIJIR 8 has brought about nore
di scussion about allocating dollars in a finite world and
actually nmaking financial decisions than he has heard in any
ot her conm tt ee. He opined that this is where the focus of the
di scussi on shoul d be. He stated that “the 800-pound gorilla in
the roonf is the state’ s operating budget. He enphasi zed that
that is the issue that really needs to be addressed, and HIR 8
bri ngs about that discussion. He said perhaps HIR 8 needs to be
“tweaked,” but he is encouraged by the discussion the proposed
| egi sl ati on has generat ed. He told Representative WIson that
he knows there are varying needs in different parts of the
state, but he said he would like the conmttee to focus on the
control HIR 8 wll exercise rather than what the state wll or
wi |l not have.

8:56:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expressed that the |loss of the House \Vays
& Means Committee was sad, because that commttee held this type
of discussion all the tinmne.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he never sat on the House Ways &
Means Committee, but he has never heard substantive decisions
made regarding where the state will spend each doll ar.

8:57:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Alaska’s capital and operating
budgets are separate for a reason, and the legislature violates

the constitution every year because it is unable - because of
the needs of the state - to neet the statutory requirenent that
one-third of the state’s budget nust be “capital.” He directed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2009



attention to the pie chart previously referred to by
Representati ve Gruenberg, and another pie chart, |abeled, “FY 06
Qperating & Capital Budgets Unduplicated Appropriations by
Category.” Each chart shows a section of the pie as the Genera
Fund, which [handwitten to the side] has been broken down into
the operating and the capital budgets. Representative Seaton
said if the plan proposed in HIR 8 had been in play in FY 05
when the legislature was already initiating a tire tax and
i ncreasing business taxes, $600 nillion would have had to be
taken out of the G That means the state would have been
required to raise $600 million either by initiating a [state]
sales tax or incone tax. In FY 06, he noted, the l|egislature
cane up with $338 nmillion in capital and funded a Ilot of
projects; however, if the plan proposed in HIR 8 had been in
exi stence then, it would have required 100 percent of that
capital budget and 26-30 percent of the GF operating budget.
Representative Seaton remarked that between $900 million - $1.2
billion would have had to be put aside, out of reach of the
| egi slature, until the five-year average raised the bal ance, and
there would have been a zero capital budget and at |east 25
percent less in the G-

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY responded that he w shes the state had
taken that noney off the table. He said there are many tines
this plan would “danpen down” spending, but he believes that is
the kind of discipline the people of Al aska are requesting.

9:04: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that in the past, when oil was down
to $10 a barrel, at least there were 1.4 mllion barrels a day.
Today, he indicated, there are only 650,000-700,000 barrels a
day being produced. He stated that in tinmes when the state does
not have noney to spend, there are alternatives. For exanple, a
roof can be repaired instead of being replaced or an alternative

buil ding can be used for a classroom when one burns down. He
suggested, “If you want to go to Disneyland for two years in a
row, then maybe you can’'t go to college.” He expl ai ned that

this issue boils down to making choices and giving up one thing
to fund anot her.

9:06: 09 AM
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON acknowl edged there are many points of
view, and she stated that she does not have a problem with the

idea of the state having a fiscal plan. However, she warned
that there is no guarantee there will ever be a gas pipeline,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- April 7, 2009



thus the state should be “planning on other ways that revenue is
comng into this state besides oil.”

CHAIR LYNN renmarked that [sone committee nenbers] had [during a
prior neeting when HIJIR 8 was heard] suggested that other forns
of revenue m ght be consi dered.

9:07:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated, “I think Representative Seaton is
absolutely right, and ... where he thinks it’s a negative thing,
| think it’s a good thing.” Money could still be accessed from
the CBRF via a three-quarters vote. He tal ked about being
accountable to the public, and he stated that he thinks it is
“high time that we start l|ooking to the future through the
past.” He said that he has not heard any argument that would
keep him from “wanting to take this first step towards a fiscal
pl an.”

9:09: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Representative Gatto’'s
previous remarks, said, “It’s not just a question of whether you
go to Disneyland or whether you go to college; it’s a question
of whether you put the noney in savings or go to college.” He
said he recently attended a health caucus, during which an issue
was addressed regarding the high nunber of children in rural
Al aska who have health problens because they cannot get good
drinking water. He stated, “The question really - to really put
this in terns of rural Alaska - is whether we get those Kkids
sonme good drinking water and get them out of the hospital or
whet her we save the noney.”

CHAIR LYNN suggested that a good fiscal plan could - over a
period of tinme - help the state address sone of its critical
pr obl ens.

9:10: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON responded that he agrees that decisions
have to be nmade; however, he said he does not think it’'s a
deci si on between savings and health, but rather it’s a choice to
spend noney in a responsi bl e manner.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he did not intend to “trivialize
i t . ”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON enphasi zed that he takes the issue of
children’s health seriously.

9:11: 36 AM

JOHN BOUCHER, Senior Economst, Ofice of the Drector, Ofice
of Managenment & Budget (OwB), Ofice of the Governor, told the
conmttee that since its nenbers had, during the previous and
current hearings on HIR 8, nentioned the 10-year fiscal plan
required by House Bill 125, he wanted to report on the progress
related to it. He said he got the feeling during the |ast
hearing that commttee nenbers thought nothing had been done
regarding this fiscal plan, and he stated that that is “far from
the truth.” He revealed that he is the lead person at OVB
regardi ng the fiscal plan.

MR. BOUCHER, regarding HIR 8, said he thinks having a certain
anount of noney out of reach may result in “a trenendous tension
to try to get at those resources.” He indicated that he thinks
[the proposed Bal anced Budget Account) would be a replication of
t he CBRF. He stated, “The bottomline to me is you re renoving
the three-quarter vote calculation.” He credited the
| egislature for restraining itself from spending all avail able
noni es over the years, noting that a significant anmount of noney
went into the CBRF. He said he thinks the adm nistration has,
in partnership with the legislature, tried to encourage that
behavi or. He said “we all” are aware of the increases in the
oper ati ng budget .

9:15:12 AM

MR. BOUCHER stated that with big revenue cones the possibility
to create new opportunities or fix big problens. He questioned
how the state mght have dealt with AGA or the state's
retirement systemif state revenue had been “off the table.” He
expl ai ned, “Because a significant anmpunt of the growmh in the
operating budget during the past several years has been that
stepped up obligation that we have taken on ... to deal with the
unfunded Iliability.” M. Boucher said “if it had been
constructed that way” the state would have had to consider
alternate revenue sources, and he said one alternative would
have been the earnings reserve. He indicated that [HIR 8] does
not address “the whole revenue picture,” and he said “we” need
to think about unintended consequences.

9:17: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- April 7, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she was the person who had renarked
at a previous neeting that legislators had not been issued a
report regarding the 10-year fiscal plan. She said having that
report would be assuring for many | egislators.

MR. BOUCHER explained that the report was submtted by OVB
during “one of the first several neetings” of the House Finance

Conmittee. It was an overview of the entire state plan, and it
exists on line at OWs web site. He said no hardcopy was
produced, because OVB did not see the need for one, but he
offered to rectify that. Each agency provided its own 10-year

forward forecast, he expl ai ned.

MR. BOUCHER stated that the shortcom ngs of [House Bill 125] are
simlar to those of HIR 8: neither takes into account “the
whol e picture.” He noted that nuch of the debate he has heard
has been focused on unrestricted GF revenues and has ignored the
categories of “other” revenue or federal revenue. He said,
“Because that - if we look in the rear view mrror - has been
the nost unpredictable piece between one year to the next and
has caused the nost angst in foruns like this.”

VR. BOUCHER, regarding federal revenue, said the only
possibility is to consider current prograns and predict what the
“match rate” may be in the future. For progranms such as
Medicaid, the state has “sone pretty good ideas.” O her
prograns are nore difficult to predict, and the state al nost has
to “assune status quo” or a potentially inflated rate. He
expressed his willingness to discuss “the pieces of the fisca
pl an” - those pieces that have been successful, as well as those
t hat have caused a struggle.

CHAIR LYNN said he hopes M. Boucher would cone to the next
commttee of referral and “expand upon” what he just said.

9:20: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she knows how inportant the House
Finance Commttee is, but not everyone hears what is said in
that coormittee when they are busy with their own committees.

9: 20: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited part of AS 37.07.060(b), which
read as fol |l ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- April 7, 2009



(b) The governor shall present the proposed

conprehensive operating and capital i mprovenent s
progranms, and fiscal plan if it is required under AS
37.07.020(b), in a message to a joint session of the
| egi sl ature bef ore t he fourth | egi sl ative day
followng the convening of the legislature in regular
sessi on.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that that |anguage clearly
requires a nessage from the governor that nust be sent to the
| egislature as a hard copy, not just sent electronically. He
expressed his hope that the governor would follow this statute
in the future.

9:21:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said Alaska 1is trying to avoid the
difficulties other states are experiencing. California, for
exanple, is a state wth “enornous resources,” but it acquired a
huge deficit by spending nore noney than available. In response

to M. Boucher’s comment regarding AG A Representative Gatto
indicated that the state would have done w thout other things in
order to fund Ad A He spoke about |ooking to the future, and
he said it should be younger people in the |egislature deciding
what needs to be addressed. He added, “And that’'s what scares
mne is we're doing the thinking for them w thout them doing the
t hi nking for us.”

9:24: 08 AM

MR. BOUCHER said he is not against the resolution conceptually.
He enphasized that the admnistration is “on record as trying to
pronot e saving.”

9:25: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said if the nechanism [of HIR 8] had been
in place in 2007, the state would have had to reduce the GF
contribution to the budget by $1.4 billion - by $1.7 billion if
t he nmechani sm had been in place in 2008. He asked if OB could
have done that “in any mechanism that wouldn’'t, basically,
al nost destroy the fabric of the state as we know it know, and
the procedures that are in place.”

MR. BOUCHER responded that when talking about nunbers of that

magni tude, there would have been sone extrenely difficult
decisions to be nade, and the adm nistration would “have to do

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2009



that in partnership with all the citizens of the state through
the |l egislature.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recalled the fiscal restraints of 2003 and
2004, and indicated [how difficult it would have been for] the
| egislature to renove $.5 billion fromits revenue stream “in
addition to everything else.” He said he has not ever seen the
adm nistration cone forward with an austere, draconian budget;
therefore, he questioned M. Boucher’s support of a nechanism
that would directly result in such a budget.

9:28: 15 AM

MR. BOUCHER responded, “Representative Seaton, we're interested
in nmechanisns to save. | think I’ve tried to outline sone of
the tensions that | see in this.”

9:29: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY summarized that the proposed resolution
woul d not take away the prerogative of the legislature relative
to the capital budget, would snoboth out the spikes and drops in
the state’s savings, and would force budgeting discipline on the
| egi sl ature. He expressed his hope that the resolution could be
passed so that the public could have the issue brought before
it.

9:33:13 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
9:33: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that although she does not think
HIR 8 is the answer to a fiscal plan, she thinks the committee
mght use it as “an idea of what direction we could go.” She
suggested that five-year averaging could be used. That nunber
could be divided by three, with one-third of that going to the
capital budget, one-third to deferred mai ntenance, and one-third
to the bal anced budget account. She explained that HIR 8 is a
good idea, but she warned against “putting so much down that
we're destroying what we ... have already.” She agreed that
“we’ve gone up nmaybe further than we should”; however, she
stated that given the present econony, the state nust be careful
not to take away fromits people anything it has already given
t hem She suggested that the sponsor of HIR 8 is on the right

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2009



track, but that the idea needs to be “tweaked a little bit
nore.”

CHAIR LYNN asked Representative WIlson if she would be
confortable allowi ng the next conmmttees of referral - the House
Judiciary Standing Commttee and the House Finance Committee -
to consider those issues. He pointed out that three nenbers of
the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee also serve on the
House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied, "I think it would be good to | ook
at a fewthings like that."

9: 35: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that [HIR 8] is “poor public
policy,” because it is saying that since 2000, the legislature
has been irresponsible in its budgeting. He stated that he does
not think that is the case. He said the proposed resolution
would force the legislature to pass further tax increases on
i ndi vidual citizens, because it would be taking noney into “an
untouchable tank” via a constitutional amendnent. He tal ked
about all the edifices and services that would not get funding.
Representative Seaton told Chair Lynn that if his intent is to
nove HIJR 8 out of conmttee, he would nove it out, but would
vote “do not pass.”

CHAIR LYNN said he also does not think the |egislature has been
i rresponsi bl e.

9:37:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noved to report HIR 8 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HIR 8 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HIR 24- FED. SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM M LI TARY

9:38: 28 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESOLUTION NO. 24, Urging the United States Congress and
the United States Departnent of Agriculture to extend the basic
housing allowance exclusion to all mlitary famlies for
pur poses of the school nutrition program

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2009



9:39: 06 AM

DANA STROWEN, Staff, Representative Jay Ranras, Alaska State
Legislature, introduced HIR 24 on behalf of Representative
Ranras, prine sponsor. She read part of the sponsor statenent,
which read in entirety as follows [original punctuati on
provi ded] :

House Joint Resolution 24 enables mlitary famlies
that are living off the base to qualify for the school
nutrition prograns.

Fam lies who live off the base are given an additional
basic allowance for housing (BAH). Due to this
increase of income children of these famlies are not
qualified for the school nutrition prograns. Mny of
these famlies are struggling financially. Thi s
presents a major issue for famlies that have one or
multiple children to feed and a vital program such as
the free lunch program is denied to them because of
the location of their honmes and increased income due
to the basic all owance for housing.

HIR 24 encourages the United States Congress and the
United States Departnment of Agriculture to | ook at the
i ssue presented to the heroic mlitary nen and wonen
and thus their famlies. This is an opportunity to
ensure our mlitary famlies do not have to endure
addi ti onal hardships while a famly nenber is
def endi ng our country.

9:40:17 AM

CHAI R LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one to testify,
cl osed public testinony.

9:40: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report HIR 24 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

9:41: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i f suggested copies of HIR 24 shoul d be

sent to other nenbers of Congress, since it urges U S. Congress
to extend | egislation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2009



M5. STROWMEN responded that she worked closely with Josh Tenpe
in Senator Huggins’ office regarding this |egislation, and she
said she thinks M. Tenple, Senator Huggins, and Representative
Ranras woul d agree “that we could extend that.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renewed the notion to noved HIR 24 out
of commttee with individual recomrendations and attached fi scal
notes. There being no objection, HIR 24 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HB 24- PROCUREMENT PREFERENCE FOR VETERANS

9:42:11 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO. 24, "An Act relating to a public procurenent preference
for Al aska veterans."

[Before the commttee was CSHB 24( M.V). |
9:42:23 AM

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, Staff, Representative Anna Fairclough, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 24 on behalf of Representative
Fai rcl ough, co-prinme sponsor. She stated that currently in
statute, [bidder] preference is given to Al aska bidders, | ocal
agriculture and fisheries, Alaska product preference, recycled
products, enploynent prograns, Al askans with disabilities, and
enpl oyers of people with disabilities. She indicated there is a
preference for Al aska officers in Alaska Adm nistrative Code.

M5. KOCENEMAN said the co-prine sponsors feel that because of
what veterans give, the state should give back to them what it
can. She said HB 24 is a step in that direction; it would give
a 5 percent [bidder] preference to Al aska veteran business, up
to $5, 000.

9:44: 13 AM

M5. KOENEMAN, in response to Representative Gatto, noted that
the definition of an Al aska veteran is found in Section 2 of HIR
24, and the change in statute would be permanent. In response
to a followup question, she cited the |anguage on page 2, lines
7-8, which read:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 7, 2009



(b) A preference under this section is in addition to
any ot her preference for which the bidder qualifies.

9:45: 36 AM

M5. KOENEMAN, in response to Chair Lynn, said the bill does not
address the issue of disability; however, it can be “attached to
the Al askans Wth Disabilities preference.”

CHAIR LYNN asked, “And so, this and the disability would go
t oget her then?”

MS. KOENEMAN answered that’s correct.
9:46: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that | anguage on page 1 sets a $5, 000
limt, while language on page 2 states that the preference is
“in addition to any other preference for which the bidder
qualifies.” He questioned whether that m ght be conflicting.

9:47: 28 AM

VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent Oficer, Division of GCeneral
Services, Departnment of Admnistration, responded that the
$5,000 cap is for a particular preference; it has no inpact on
the value of any other preference for which a veteran-owned
busi ness woul d qualify. In response to Representative Johnson

he confirmed, “This preference would be in addition to any other
preference that that business or individual otherw se qualified
for.” He told Representative Johnson that there are sone
federal preferences that do not involve the state.

9:49: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG directed attention to | anguage
begi nni ng on page 2, line 11, which read:

“or the bidder nust have sold supplies of the genera
nature solicited to other state agencies, governnents,
or the general public.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that would discrinmnate
agai nst soneone who is new in business.

MR. JONES drew attention to the first part of the sentence,
which states that value nust be added "by the bidder itself

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 7, 2009



actually performng, controlling, nanaging, and supervising a
significant part of the services provided”. He pointed out that
the word in between those two parts of the sentence is “or”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the first part of the
conjunctive sentence does not deal with goods - only services.
The second part of that sentence refers to supplies. He said
there may be a bidder who is not dealing with services or
supplies, but rather is dealing vehicles, which is not a supply,
unless it 1is included sonmewhere in the I|anguage wthin a
definition of supply.

MR JONES said this language is what is currently wused in
disability statute and "we" suggested it be used in HIR 24. He
stated the intent is to prevent a person from “shopping their
preferences around their status as a disabled bidder or, in this
case, an Al aska vendor, and actually being a front person and
bi dding on jobs and not actually perform ng them and skimr ng
off the preference.” He said “we” have interpreted this
| anguage to nean that the bidder would actually have to perform
do the work, or have been in business performng this kind of
busi ness in the past.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasi zed that that is not the way he

reads the |anguage; he opined that it is very msleading. He
expressed concern that the |anguage would not aide a start-up
busi ness. He said he supports the legislation but thinks it

needs sone worKk.

CHAIR LYNN suggested Representative Guenberg mght consider
addressi ng these concerns via an anendnent.

9: 53:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the House State Affairs
Standing Committee is the only conmttee of referral. He
remarked that there nmay be a bidder who provides services but
will not be supervising, therefore, he recommended changing the
“and” to an “or” in the previously provided |anguage from page
2, line 10.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the |anguage on
page 2, lines 3-6, which read as foll ows:

(3) Ilimted liability conpany organized

under AS 10.50 if a mpjority of the nenbers are
Al aska veterans; or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- April 7, 2009



(4) corporation that is wholly owned by
individuals and a majority of the individuals are
Al aska veterans.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said conpanies differ in the anmount of
peopl e involved and the anmount of shares controlled. He offered
an exanpl e. He said, “What you're doing is inviting sonebody
who doesn’'t qualify to get nine of her buddies who do qualify,
give them 1 percent of the stock, and | o and behold they get the
break and get the bid.” He said he thinks “the opposite is
true,” but said he cannot think of a hypothetical exanple at
present. He recommended that |anguage be “tightened up.”

9: 55: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he wants this legislation to benefit
Al askans, not a veteran who noves up to Al aska and becones a

resident in 30 days. He asked if the words “at tine of
di scharge” could be added followng “resident of this state” on
page 2, line 14, without running afoul of the constitution.
9:57: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to the aforenentioned
| anguage on page 2, beginning on line 9. He asked if the
| easing of an office building to the state would be covered
under supplies or service.

MR. JONES responded that |eases are defined in statute as a
supply.

9:57:47 AM

RI CHARD DAVI DGE, Menber, Board of Directors, Al aska Veterans
Busi ness Alliance;, President, State Council, Vietnam Veterans
of Anerica, stated that when people volunteer to protect
Anerica, they “disadvantage thenselves from staying hone and
being involved in the devel opnent of all the other things that
we do in our comunity.” He spoke of giving veterans a little
bit of an advantage once they return hone, so that they can be
conpetitive even though they have been disadvantaged by their
service and, nost often, separation fromthe state.

VR. DAVI DGE congratul ated [Representatives Guenberg and
Johnson] for “their technical observations,” and said he | ooks
forward to working with their staff in an effort to solve those
pr obl ens. He stated that “we” do not want veterans to “hire a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 7, 2009



vet” to qualify a conpany. He said “we” support the changes
that were made to HB 24 in the House Special Conmittee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

10: 00: 02 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

10: 00: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to Chair Lynn, said he is
not prepared to propose any anendnments at this tine.

10: 00: 24 AM

M5. KOENEMAN st at ed:

In order to qualify for the veterans’ preference, they
have to qualify as an Al aska bidder, and under current
statute ... | don't believe that it qualifies for a
start-up conpany initially. So, that would be dealing
with the entire procurenent code, instead of this bill
itself.

CHAIR LYNN said the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee is
the last commttee of referral. He relayed that he would not be
opposed to having anendnents made on the House fl oor. He asked
Representative G uenberg if he would prefer to hold the bill in
conmittee.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 10:01:21 AMto 10:01: 44 AM

10: 01: 50 AM

CHAI R LYNN said Representative G uenberg s suggestions should be
addressed. He suggested that Representative G uenberg work with
the bill sponsors and have some new | anguage ready to consider
at the next conmttee neeting.

[ HB 24 was hel d over. ]

10: 02: 49 AM

CHAI R LYNN di scussed the upcom ng conm ttee cal endar.

10: 03: 19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- April 7, 2009



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:03
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 7, 2009



